
Feb. 22, 2024

To Chair Mendelson and the Committee of the Whole,

I’m submitting this testimony on behalf of Greater Greater Washington, where I serve as D.C.
policy director, on the Office of Planning and Office of Zoning’s recent performance.

Office of Planning
Comprehensive Plan
We are excited to see OP release its outlook for the District’s next Comprehensive Plan at the
beginning of the month. We agree with its contents, and look forward to OP conducting outreach
for the rewrite, and rewriting, the Comp Plan within the stated schedule, which requires a
transmittal of the plan to the council by June 2027. Once the process is underway, we expect
that there will be some calls for a more extensive process. Those should be heeded, as long as
they do not result in any extension of OP’s schedule or impede delivery of the plan to the council
by June 2027.

Last year, we suggested that the council establish a subcommittee to work on the Comp Plan,
an idea that we stand by given that the rewrite process will cross several elections.

Development review
We’re pleased that OP is, with the proposed map amendment for 1617 U St., NW, and 1620 V
St., NW, setting a precedent, however small, for the District upzoning its own land in advance of
any development. We would like this to happen much more often. The majority of outreach on
specific projects should occur in DMPED’s RFP process, which of course should be
strengthened.

Historic preservation
GGWash is no fan of the District’s current historic-preservation regime. But I think it is fair to say
that the proposed Chevy Chase historic district, in particular, demonstrates that certain
applicants are beginning to significantly reach to justify historic designations.

An application like this threatens the legitimacy of the practice overall. I would hope that historic
preservation’s backers would realize that applications that are increasingly naked in their
revanchism don’t do them any favors, and I would hope that the Historic Preservation Office is
considering how to balance the District’s stated goals of increased housing production in its
most affluent areas with preservation’s demands.

https://planning.dc.gov/sites/default/files/dc/sites/op/page_content/attachments/DC%202050%20Short%20Paper_0.pdf


We’d like the committee to ask OP the following:

● While historic preservation and housing production may not always be in conflict, they
may not always be harmonious, either. What takes precedent, historic preservation or
housing production, when the two are in conflict? How does OP determine what takes
precedent?

● How much decisionmaking power should be granted to the Mayor’s agent to resolve
conflicts, and how frequently? Currently, “there are typically no more than five to ten”
Mayor’s agent hearings per year; clearly, the position is not designed to adjudicate much
beyond cases that become a big deal, but the impact of preservation on individual
homeowners is quite extraordinary. What is OP and HPO’s role in ensuring that the
Mayor’s agent, a role seemingly structured for extraordinary circumstances, is not too
heavily depended upon for more prosaic, though no less important, conflicts?

Office of Zoning
In a recent meeting, I asked the zoning commission’s legal counsel to clarify the role of the
racial equity tool for proposed map amendments. I was semi-satisfied with the answer, which
amounted to the tool being important, and applicants doing what it says being desired, but it not
being in the zoning code, because the commission explicitly decided that it should not be in the
zoning code. At the same time, I’ve watched some commission members treat the racial equity
tool as equivalent as the noticing requirements for map-amendment applicants, which are in the
zoning code.

We’d like the committee to ask OZ the following:

● If an applicant follows the tool’s guidance, is their project considered racially equitable?

● Why is the racial equity tool not in the zoning code? Will it ever be?

● If the racial equity tool is not in the zoning code, what power does the commission have
besides nicely asking applicants to follow its guidance?

Lastly, I would like to compliment OZ’s staff for their competence and patience in managing the
surge of public input that has hit the commission in the past year.

Thank you,
Alex
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